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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

1.1 Statement by Director General submitting Annual Report to the Premier

I have the honour of submitting the 2006/7 Annual Report of the Department of the

Premier in terms of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999.

Dr MC Nwaila Date

DIRECTOR GENERAL
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It is with great pleasure that I submit

this Annual Report which records

the achievements of the Depart-

ment of the Premier against our

mission, to provide strategic

direction and to co-ordinate

integrated service delivery within

government in the Free State, for

the 2006/7 financial year.

During the year under review, the

Department of the Premier con-

tinued to provide strategic leader-

ship in the province, including in the

areas of policy and strategic human

resources.

Of special note is the successful

review of the Free State Growth

and Development Strategy which

brought together a multitude of

stakeholders to consolidate this

strategy as well as the development

of an integrated Human Resource

Management and Development

Strategy for the provincial govern-

ment.  It is through this strategy that

we will put in place the necessary

skills required for us to reach our

goals and objectives.  We want to

ensure that we are responsive to

the needs of our citizens and that

we continue to meet our service

delivery objectives.

Stakeholder engagement was once

again high on our agenda.  A number

of communities were reached

through our Izimbizo programme

and EXCO Meets the People

campaigns where communities

engaged the Executive Council on

their appreciation of what govern-

ment is doing for them and also

concerns. These programmes

continue to yield visible improve-

ments in the quality of engage-

ments between government and

communities.

One of the critical issues emanating

from these campaigns is the need

to further consolidate our communi-

cation platforms and to provide

relevant information to communities

on service delivery accomplisments

across the two spheres; namely,

municipal and provincial govern-

ment level.

The current Provincial Executive of

the Free State Provincial Govern-

ment reached the half-way mark of

its term of office during the period

under review.  In fulfilling our role of

providing strategic leadership, the

Department of the Premier facilitated

a Mid-Term Review process in which

the central question was, how far
has the Provincial government
gone to deliver on its vision of
creating a prosperous Province and
fulfilling the social needs of all its
people?

This review confirmed that there

has been considerable improve-

ment in the quality of life of the

people living in the Province and

that there is clear evidence that the

province is better off than in 2004,

despite the challenges it faces.

Among the challenges the Depart-

ment faced during the past year,

was ensuring that we build the

necessary capacity in the province

to coordinate the provincial

ASGISA programmes and ensure

the implementation of the provincial

projects.  Other challenges such as

the strengthening of the imple-

mentation of the IGR Act, which

1.2 Foreword by the Director General
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among others require the Depart-

ment to be more hands-on during

the IDP assessment and engage-

ment processes, as well as the

decision to transfer the Community

Development Worker programme

to the Department of the Premier,

placed additional strain on the

resources of the Department.

While much has been accom-

plished by the Department of the

Premier and the Free State

Provincial Government, more re-

mains to be done.  Our strategies

and programmes for the remainder

of the 2004-2009 period are in

place.  We are thankful for the

positive economic growth and the

reduction in unemployment that we

have registered over the past year.

These achievements will however

only serve to further energise us in

our pursuit of growing the economy

which remains one of our key

mandates.

We shall move with speed in

addressing key issues arising out of

our civic engagements, the

challenges confronting communi-

ties at large and the agenda for the

new year of building partnerships.

We shall pull out all stops and work

tirelessly as we heed to the call

from the Medium Term Strategic

Framework Annexure 2007 for

Business Unusual to ensure that

we improve the lives of the people

we serve.

As I present this report to the

Premier of the Free State and the

public at large, I wish to thank the

political leadership, Premier

Marshoff and her Executive Council

for their visionary leadership and

support.

I also wish to extend a special vote

of thanks to the senior managers

and officials in the Department of

the Premier and across the Free

State Provincial Government for

their continued dedication to

achieving greater levels of service

delivery.

Dr MC Nwaila

DIRECTOR-GENERAL

Date
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The conclusion of the financial year

2006/7 coincides with the mid-term

period of the current Provincial Exe-

cutive of the Free State Provincial

Government. In line with our re-

sponsibility of providing overall

strategic leadership to the whole 

of the Provincial Government, the

Department of the Premier had to

take a lead in the assessment of the

mid-term and the redirection of the

collective energies towards the

realisation of the Provincial

Government priorities.

The delivery of our State of the

Province Address reaffirmed the

2014 vision as a strategic mobili-

zation programme for our country

and Province, and a framework for

our programme of action. Our em-

phasis was correctly on uniting

society in a national effort for faster

development.

The assessment of the period

under review shows that we have

been able to lead in the definition of

a common agenda and the mobili-

zation of all of society to take part in

the implementation of a common

programme of reducing poverty and

unemployment. Whilst we consis-

tently demonstrated attributes of a

caring government, we had to

continuously mitigate against a

tendency of reliance and depen-

dency by our people, by placing

emphasis on sustainable develop-

ment

Our energies and resources were

invested in programmes, which

ensures:

• Economic growth and inclusion

• Reduction in social welfare and

dependence

• Strengthening of state capacity

to fight crime for effective

delivery and crime prevention

• Consolidating international work

to pursue the imperatives of

economic growth and inclusion

We pursued these objectives in-

formed by the Free State Growth

and Development Strategy whose

1.2 Foreword by the Premier
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review process was also success-

fully concluded.

The Department's activities for the

period under review, drew from its

three strategic thrusts namely that

1. The Premier and the Executive

Council are supported to

achieve government's goals and

priorities

2. Departments in the Provincial

Government are strategically

guided and coordinated with

regard transversal corporate

support functions

3. Activities of Departments and

Municipalities in the Free State

Provincial Government are

aligned and integrated towards

the achievements of the goals

and priorities of government

As we present this Annual Report of

2006/7, I am confident that we have

been successful in facilitating and

building transverse capacity and

skills needed to achieve the objec-

tives of our Free State Growth and

Development Strategy. The con-

clusion of the Human Resource and

Development Strategy for the

FSPG, will provide an even wider

scope for this purpose.

I am equally sure that the review

document of the Free State Growth

and Development Strategy has

given the necessary prominence to

our Provincial Spatial Development

Perspective and will ensure that we

continue to effectively coordinate

development planning initiatives in

the Free State into a Provincial

Strategy which can be measured,

monitored and evaluated against

clearly defined targets.

This review has added new

responsibilities to the Department

of the Premier, particularly the co-

ordination of strategic programmes

such as the National Youth Service

Programme, the Five Year Local

Government Strategic Agenda,

ASGISA, Community Development

Workers and other programmes

which came about as a result of the

directives of the Presidency.

Moving forward, we will strengthen

our partnerships with all the stake-

holders and we will deepen our

engagements with our communi-

ties. We will continuously strive to

consolidate our organizational ca-

pacity and develop ability of

transforming broad policies and into

implementable projects and pro-

grammes.

I receive this Annual Report with

satisfaction in the knowledge that

government work is on an un-

stoppable upward trajectory and

that our people are at the centre of

our transformation agenda.

Ms FB Marshoff

PREMIER

31 July 2007

Date
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1.3.1 Institutions falling under the Executive Authority's control

The Free State Youth Commission is the only institution that fell under the control

of the Executive Authority as at the 31st of March 2007. The Commission has

been established in terms of the Free State Youth Commission Act no. 4 of 1996

as amended by Act No. 1 of 2001.

1.3.2 Bills submitted to the Legislature

None.

1.3.3 Visits abroad including dates and purpose

In the financial year 2006 to 2007 the following visits were undertaken abroad by

the Executing Authority:

No. Destination Dates Delegation Purpose of Visit

1 UK 09 - 17 May Ms FB Marshoff, Explore twinning

(London and 2006 Premier: Free State possibilities in the areas 

Manchester) of: tourism, local 

government,

Mr MJ Mafereka, sports, education and

MEC Local Government municipalities.

Mr NH Masithela, MEC:

Tourism, Environmental

and Economic Affairs

Ms SK Mnumzana, MEC

Sport, Arts and Culture

Ms BR Sempe, HOD Sport,

Arts and Culture

Ms L Sait, Exco Support

and Community Liaison,

Department of the Premier

Ms MEI Moloabi: Protocol

2 Belgium June 27 - Ms FB Marshoff, To attend the Africa

2 July 2006 Premier: Free State Diaspora Investment 

Forum

Mr BG More, Head:

Provincial Policy, Planning

and Co-ordination

Mr DA Kganare, ASGISA

Co-ordinator

Ms Tshange

Ms MEI Moloabi, Protocol

3 Germany 9 - 18 Ms FB Marshoff, To discuss areas of

October Premier: Free State collaboration in education,

2006 sports, arts and crafts,

and investment
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Mr SJ Mohai, MEC: Public

Works, Transport and Roads

Mr NH Masithela, MEC:

Tourism, Environmental 

and  Economic Affairs

Ms SK Mnumzana, MEC:

Sport, Arts and Culture

Mr MJ Mafereka, MEC: Local

Government and Housing

Mr WX Ntshona: Chief

Director: Department of

Social Development

Mr DA Kganare, ASGISA

Co-ordinator

Mr M Maduna, Mayor,

Setsoto Local Municipality

Ms F Rampola: Inter-

governmental Relations

Ms MEI Moloabi, Protocol

4 United 8 - 19 Ms FB Marshoff, To pursue on possibilities

States November Premier: Free State in education, agriculture,

2006 SMME development,

Mr MC Mokitlane, MEC: tourism, investment 

Agriculture capacity building in 

municipal governance, 

Mr MJ Mafereka. MEC: policy management,

Local Government and human resource

Housing management, and also

on twinning

Mr M Zwane, Executive possibilities between 

Mayor, Thabo Mofut- health departments

sanyana District of Free State and the

Municipality State of Indiana in the US.

Ms G Mothupi, Executive

Mayor, Mangaung District

Municipality

Mr TB Khunyeli, HOD:

Tourism, Environmental 

and Economic Affairs

Ms MEI Moloabi, Protocol

Dr D Mamphiswana, 

Head: Provincial Planning,

Monitoring and Research
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Mr T Sikisi, Free State

Provincial Government

Spokesperson

5 Dubai 24 Nov - 03 Ms FB Marshoff, Premier: To attend the 2006

Dec 2006 Free State Soccerex and to explore

opportunities for 

economic, investment

Ms SK Mnumzana, MEC: and educational

Sport, Arts and Culture collaborations.

Mr MJ Mafereka, MEC:

Local Government and

Housing

Mr FK Morule, MEC

Public Safety, Security

and Liaison

Mr SJ Mohai, MEC

Public Works, Roads and

Transport

Dr MC Nwaila, Director

General

Mr M Tsoametsi, DDG,

Local Government and

Housing

Ms MEJ Mosala, Inter-

governmental Relations

1.4 Mission statement of the Department

To provide strategic direction and to co-ordinate integrated service delivery within

government in the Free State.

1.5 Legislative mandate of the Department

1.5.1 The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa 1996;

1.5.2 The Public Service Act, 1994 (Proclamation 103 of 1994) and the Public

Service Regulations, 2001;

1.5.3 The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) and

Treasury Regulation, 2005

1.5.4 The Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act 2005 (Act No. 13 of

2005);

1.5.5 The Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1999 (Act No. 75 of 1997);

1.5.6 The Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998);

1.5.7 The Labour Relations Act, 1995 (Act No. 66 of 1995);

1.5.8 The Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 (Act No. 2 of 2000);

1.5.9 The Promotion of Administration Justice Act, 2000 (Act No. 3 of 2000);

1.5.10 The Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act,

2000 (Act No. 4 of 2000);
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1.5.11 The Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act No. 5 of

2000);

1.5.12 The Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No. 53

of 2003);

1.5.13 The Protected Disclosures Act, 2000 (Act No. 26 of 2000); and

1.5.14 Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004 (Act No. 12 of

2004).

2. PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

2.1 Voted funds

Appropriation Main Adjusted Actual Amount Over Expenditure

Appropriation Appropriation Spent

Department of R91 856 000 R94 856 000 R97 084 000 R2 613 000

the Premier

Responsible Ms. F. B. Marshoff - Premier

Executing

Authority

Administering Department of the Premier

Department

Accounting Dr. M. C. Nwaila - Director General

Officer

2.2 Aim of vote

To enable the Premier to fulfill her constitutional obligations in order to ensure the

effective and efficient utilisation of resources of the FSPG. 

2.3 Key measurable objectives

2.3.1 Key measurable objectives

In order to ensure that the vision and mission statement of the Department are

realized, the following strategic objectives were identified for the Department of

the Premier:

STRATEGIC GOAL 1: (PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION)

THE PREMIER AND THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL ARE EFFECTIVELY

SUPPORTED IN ACHIEVING GOVERNMENT'S GOALS AND PRIORITIES

Strategic Objectives in achieving Strategic Goal 1:

• To render administrative assistance and support to the Premier to ensure that

the Premier's Office functions effectively and efficiently

• To render efficient secretariat services to the Premier, Executive Council,

Cluster Programmes and other Provincial Committees.

• To render effective and efficient support services to the Office of the Director

General.

• To give strategic direction and coordinate the activities of Security Managers in

the FSPG and render advice on matters related to security management in the

Department of the Premier.

• To audit accounting, financial and operating systems in the Department of the

Premier by reviewing, measuring and evaluating the effectiveness of these

systems and controls in the Department.

• To ensure sound financial management in the Department of the Premier.
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• To provide strategic direction to Provincial Departments in the FSPG on matters

related to institutional enhancement.

STRATEGIC GOAL 2: (PROGRAMME 2: CORPORATE SUPPORT)

DEPARTMENTS IN THE FREE STATE PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT ARE

STRATEGICALLY GUIDED AND COORDINATED WITH REGARD TO

TRANSVERSE CORPORATE SUPPORT FUNCTIONS

Strategic Objectives in achieving Strategic Goal 2:

• To facilitate and coordinate the building of transverse capacity within Free State

Provincial Government through the development of skills.

• To provide strategic direction and render advice on human resource matters to

all Provincial Departments.

• To provide strategic direction to Provincial Departments in the FSPG on matters

related to organisational development.

• To provide strategic direction with regard to the effective utilisation of

information technology and information communication technology in the

FSPG.

• To render legal services to the Premier, Members of the Executive Council, the

Director General, Heads of Department and other officials.

• To create an enabling environment for the Premier, Executive Council and

Director General to communicate important issues to members of the public

and employees.

• To manage a media strategy and ensure that the image of the FSPG and the

Department of the Premier is held in good standing.

STRATEGIC GOAL 3: (PROGRAMME 3: POLICY AND GOVERNANCE)

ACTIVITIES OF DEPARTMENTS AND MUNICIPALITIES IN THE FREE STATE

PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT ARE INTEGRATED AND ALIGNED TOWARDS

THE ACHIEVEMENT OF THE GOALS AND PRIORITIES OF GOVERNMENT

Strategic Objective in achieving Strategic Goal 3:

• To coordinate and integrate development planning initiatives in the Free State

Province into a Provincial Strategy.

• To monitor and advise on the coordination and implementation of the Free

State Growth and Development Strategy and other Government Programmes

through the cluster monitoring and evaluation system.

• To coordinate and advise on the implementation of major government

programmes in the FSPG including Municipal Infrastructure Grants, Expanded

Public Works Programme, Project Consolidate, Integrated Sustainable Rural

Development Strategy, Urban Renewal Programme etc.

• To establish, facilitate and improve intergovernmental relations between the

FSPG and other governments

• To provide strategic direction, facilitate and coordinate special programmes

(Office on the Status of Women, Office on the Status of Disabled Persons,

Rights of Children, HIV and AIDS Management) in the FSPG.

• To render efficient and effective Community Liaison and Multi Purpose

Community Centre Services
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2.3.2 Summary of Programmes

The Programmes of the Department has been reduced from 14 to 3 to be in line

with the Guidelines from National Treasury.  A strategic objective is linked to each

of the sub or sub sub-programme which is broken up into outputs and targets as

per the 1 Year Operational Plan in the APP.

Programme 1: Administration

Sub Programme: Premiers Support

Sub Sub-programme: Premier

Sub Sub-programme: Premier Support Services

Sub Programme: Executive Council Support

Sub Programme: Director General

Sub Sub-programme: Director General

Sub Sub-programme: Internal Audit

Sub Sub-programme: Security Advisor / Coordinator

Sub Sub-programme: Institutional Enhancement

Sub Programme: Financial Management Services

Sub Sub-programme: Financial Management

Sub Sub-programme: Internal Control and Risk Management

Programme 2: Corporate Support

Sub Programme: Strategic Human Resources

Sub Sub-programme: Human Resource Advice, Coordination

Sub Sub-programme: Free State Training and Development Institute

Sub Sub-programme: Organisational Development

Sub Programme: Information Communication Technology

Sub Programme: Legal Services

Sub Programme: Government Communication Services

Sub Sub-programme: Corporate Communication

Sub Sub-programme: Media Strategy and Liaison

Programme 3: Policy and Governance

Sub Programme: Human Rights

Sub Sub-programme: Special Programmes

Sub Sub-programme: Office of the Status of Women

Sub Sub-programme: Office of the Status of Disabled Persons

Sub Sub-programme: Office of the Status of Rights of Children

Sub Sub-programme: HIV & AIDS Management

Sub Sub-programme: Premier Projects

Sub Sub-programme: Departmental Special Programmes

Sub Sub-programme: Free State Youth Commission

Sub Programme: Intergovernmental Relations

Sub Programme: Provincial Policy Management

Sub Sub-programme: Provincial Planning, Monitoring and Research

Sub Sub-programme: Provincial Strategic Planning, Policy and Research

Sub Sub-programme: Government Programme Implementation & Monitoring

Sub Sub-programme: Community Liaison & MPCC Services

Sub Sub-programme: Government Programme Coordination

2.3.3 Achievements

The Department of the Premier achieved most of the planned outputs and targets

set for the 2006/2007 financial year.  Details of these achievements are included

in the section on Programme Performance.  In limited cases targets have not been

fully achieved due circumstances outside the control of the Department.
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In addition to achieving the objectives and targets set in the Annual Performance

Plan, the Department of the Premier also achieved the following:

The Free State Growth and Development Strategy (FSGDS) was successfully

reviewed in accordance with the guidelines and inputs from the Presidency.  The

FSGDS was further contextualised by having workshops with strategic planners of

departments as well as representatives from municipalities which included political

office bearers, Municipal Managers, IDP Managers, LED Officers and other senior

managers within Municipalities.  The FSGDS was also introduced at various

forums such as LED Summits and District Growth and Development Summits.

The engagement of District and Local Municipalities in conceptualizing the

document ensured that their IDPs are aligned to the FSGDS.

The implementation of the IGR Act was progressed during the financial year by

ensuring that IGR structures were established in the five (5) Districts and by

setting the climate to cascade the cluster system down to Local Government level.

The Department ensured that Interdepartmental and Intergovernmental Forums

met frequently to foster a clear understanding and commitment towards imple-

mentation of the policies and strategies of the Free State Provincial Government.

The Department furthermore facilitated the Izimbizo programme for National

Government in the province as well as the Free State Provincial Government's

own outreach programme called EXCO Meets the People. During the financial

year Izimbizo were held in Xhariep, Thabo Mofutsanyana and Lejweleputswa.

The EXCO Meets the People Campaign had successful visits in the following

towns:

• Boshoff : June 2006 

• Oppermansdorp : June 2006 

• Arlington : July 2006 

• Senekal : July 2006 

• Ladybrand : Aug 2006 

• Hobhouse : Aug 2006 

In response to the National Government's objective of building the capacity of the

state, a Provincial Human Resource Management and Development Strategy for

the Free State Provincial Government was developed under the guidance of the

Department of the Premier. The adoption of this strategy by the Executive Council

represents a milestone in steering human resource development and manage-

ment in the Provincial Government towards an appropriate skilled and trained

workforce.

The second Annual Senior Management Conference for Free State Provincial

Government took place from 29-31 August 2006. A total of 237 Senior Managers

attended this conference at the Protea Black Mountain Hotel, Thaba Nchu. This

included Senior Managers from all Provincial Departments, the Free State

Gambling Board, Correctional Services and Local Authorities. At this conference a

total of 42 presentations were made by 8 international, 13 national and 21

provincial speakers. The Free State Society for Public Administration and Gover-

nance (FRESPAG) was also launched during this conference. The main objective

of the conference; namely to foster and strengthen inter-governmental relations

and co-operative governance, particularly between provincial and local

government spheres in the Free State, was achieved. The conference also

contributed towards building a cadre of Senior Management at provincial and local

level who have a shared vision of challenges facing the province.
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The second Premier's Excellence Awards function took place on 22 April 2006.

The purpose of the Premier's Excellence Awards is to provide to the Free State

Provincial Government and the Premier in particular the opportunity to recognise

and honour outstanding individuals and institutions for their performances and

contributions towards the development of the Free State Province. Nominations

for these awards were assessed by different adjudication panels made up of

representatives from government, civil society, academic institutions and

business. After these assessments are made against the criteria for the different

categories as provided for in the Premier Excellence Awards Policy, recom-

mendations were made to the Premier on the allocation of these awards. During

this event awards were allocated to finalists in the following categories: Private

Sector and State Agencies, Community Projects and Initiatives, Provincial

Departments, Research and Development, Outstanding Individuals, Posthumous

Awards and Special Awards.

October 2006 marked halfway of the term of office of the current government

(2004-2009). The Department of the Premier successfully facilitated a Mid-Term

Review process in which the central question was, how far has the Provincial
government gone to deliver on its vision of creating a prosperous Province and
fulfilling the social needs of all its people? This review confirmed that there has

been considerable improvement in the quality of life of the people living in the

Province and that there is clear evidence that the province is better off than it was

in 2004 despite the challenges it faces.

During the financial year the Legal Services Unit in the Department of the Premier

handled various multi-million Rand claims and potential claims against the

Provincial Government. These matters were successfully disposed of, resulting in

the protection of the Free State Provincial Government against a potential loss of

between R80-R90 million.

The Free State Training and Development Institute, since its configuration, has

grown significantly during the past financial year. Training interventions presented

at the Institute were based on the Workskills Plans of Departments and were

directed at enhancing the skills and capacity of the human resources of the Free

State Provincial Government towards improving the ability of the Free State

Provincial Government to deliver its services to the people of the Free State.

During the reporting period 84 courses, covering 28 topics, were presented to 

2 316 officials.

2.3.4 Overview of the service delivery environment for 2006/2007

The Department of the Premier is mandated to co-ordinate activities and provide

strategic leadership in the Free State Provincial Government and this responsi-

bility is outlined in the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and the

Public Service Act, 1994. Most activities of the Department were therefore focused

on the above-mentioned mandate in order to monitor the implementation of and

improve on the implementation of government's programmes. The service delivery

environment of the department is to a large extent influenced by the relationship

between the department and other provincial departments, local government and

in certain cases national departments.

The Department of the Premier is constantly in contact with the community at large

which also plays an important role in the service delivery environment. The quality

of this specific relationship also has to be strengthened constantly. The

Department succeeded to build rapport with all these entities by means of

including them in management structures, various organizing and co-ordination

structures as well as outreach programmes. No major issues arose during the year

which had a negative impact on service delivery. The effort to improving
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relationships had a positive response to create a stable environment for the

Department to operate in.

The impact of the new mandates is more broadly reported in the section dealing

with Strategic Overview and key policy development for the 2006/2007 financial

year.

2.3.5 Overview of the organisational environment for 2006/2007

The organisational environment of the Department of the Premier was relatively

stable during the reporting period as there were no major adjustments made in the

functioning of the Department.

Challenges in the organisational environment were mostly the result of external

challenges such as the need for co-ordination of the ASGISA programme, JIPSA

etc. which required adjustments to the organisational structure and staff establish-

ment.

2.3.6 Strategic overview and key policy developments for 2006/2007 financial year

The Department was faced with key policy developments mainly due to National

decisions which broaden the role of the department during this financial year.

These include:

• The implementation of the Accelerated Shared Growth Initiative of South

Africa (ASGISA) necessitated coordination of projects at provincial level.

The Department of the Premier by nature of its strategic and coordinating

roles, had to put structures and measures in place to ensure the imple-

mentation of provincial projects.

• The need to give effect to the IGR Act, requires that the Department of the

Premier has to assume greater responsibility with regard to municipalities.

• The President's Coordinating Council decided that the Premier had to sign-

off the IDPs of municipalities to confirm that they were credible. This called

for the Department to be more hands on during the IDP Assessment and

Engagement processes.

• The Cabinet Lekgotla in January 2007 decided that the implementation of

the Five Year Strategic Agenda for Local Government had to be overseen by

the Department of the Premier. This was done in conjunction with the

Department of Local Government and Housing.

• In response to the Programme of Action objective of building the capacity of

the state, the Department of the Premier facilitated the development of the

Provincial Human Resource Development Strategy.  The Department will be

required to play a significant role of ensuring the implementation and the

monitoring of the strategy.

• The President's Coordinating Council's decision that each province should

identify capacity at senior level to co-ordinate the izimbizo campaigns

required internal re-organisation and recruitment to deal with it.

• Overseeing the fast tracking of the Bucket Eradication Programme is now

the responsibility of the Department of the Premier. 

• The co-ordination of the Community Development Workers Programme has

recently been transferred to the Department of the Premier following a

decision of the President's Coordinating Council.

• The National Youth Service has been launched during the past year. The

Department of Public Works, Roads and Transport is the lead department

while the Department of the Premier plays an oversight role and is further

responsible for ensuring that all departments participate in the programme.
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2.4 Departmental revenue, expenditure and other specific topics

2.4.1 Collection of departmental revenue

The revenue budget of the Department was exceeded by R694 000 during the

year under review and was due to the following:

• An unexpected donation from the private sector

• Irrecoverable debts written off

• More advertisements placed in the Provincial Gazette than expected.

Although new sources of revenue are explored on a continuous basis revenue

sources in the department are limited to the following:

• Sale of the Provincial Gazette and Tender Bulletin

• Advertising money for advertisements placed in the mentioned publications

• Sale of capital and non-capital assets of the Department

• Interest on outstanding debts

The revenue collected by the Department is influenced by the following:

• Voluntary subscription by Government institutions, businesses and the

public

• Nature of advertisements placed in the publications

• Legislation that compels advertisement in the Provincial Gazette

• Recoverability of outstanding debts

2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 2006/07 % deviation

Actual Actual Actual Target Actual from target

Non-tax revenue

Sale of capital assets - - 1 000 9 000 - 100%

Sales of goods and 338 000 184 1 260 000 1 016 000 1 135 000 11.7%

services other than

capital assets

Interest and dividends 76 000 62 157 000 103 000 86 000 16.5%

Financial transactions - 194 666 000 277 000 394 000 42.2%

in assets and liabilities

Transfers received - - 10 000 - 483 000 4 730.0%

TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL 414 000 440 000 2 094 000 1 404 000 2 098 000 49.4%

RECEIPTS

2.4.2 Departmental expenditure

Programmes Voted for Roll-overs Virement Total Actual Variance

2006/07 and voted Expenditure

adjustments

Administration 24 940 000 - 1 072 000 26 012 000 26 011 000 1.0%

Corporate Support 33 705 000 - - 33 705 000 35 163 000 4.3%

Policy and Governance 36 211 000 - -1 072 000 35 139 000 35 394 000 0.7%

Special Function - - - - 516 000 100%

Total 94 856 000 - - 94 856 000 97 084 000 2.3%

2.4.3 Transfer payments

Transfer payments to the amount of R9, 252 million were made to the Free State

Youth Commission during the period under review.

In terms of the Free State Youth Commission Act, 1996, (as amended), the objects

of the Youth Commission are:

• To co-ordinate and implement an integrated national youth policy;

• To develop a provincial youth policy and an integrated provincial youth

development plan;

• To develop principles, guidelines and make recommendations to the Provincial

Government and to co-ordinate, direct and monitor the implementation of a
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provincial youth policy and an integrated national youth policy;

• To implement measures and programmes to address imbalances of the past

relating to the youth;

• To promote a uniformity of approach by all organs of state, to matters relating

to or involving the youth;

• To maintain close liaison with the role players similar to the Commission in

order to foster common policies and practice and to promote co-operation;

• To co-ordinate the activities of the various Provincial Government institutions

involved in youth matters, linking those activities to the integrated national

youth policy;

• To develop recommendations relating to any matter affecting the youth;

• To assess the needs of and opportunities and challenges for the youth and to

prioritise resource allocation to youth affairs;

• To research issues concerning youth affairs; and

• To monitor and review policies and practices regarding youth matters and to

make recommendations.

These transfer payments are subject to section 38(1)(j) of the Public Finance

Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), which requires the accounting officer

of the department to ensure that before any funds are transferred to obtain written

assurance from the entity that the entity implement effective, efficient and trans-

parent financial management and internal control systems. Such assurance was

obtained from the Free State Youth Commission.

In terms of the Transfer Agreement concluded between the Department of the

Premier and the Free State Youth Commission, the Free State Youth Commission

must also ensure that:

• Transfer payments are applied for reaching its objectives in terms of the Free

State Youth Commission Act;

• The transferred funds must be accounted for in a distinguishable set of

accounts in the accounting record books;

• The Youth Commission must provide the Department of the Premier with an

internal audit report as well as annual audited financial statements including the

audit report and a management report;

• The Youth Commission must also submit monthly reports to the Department of

the Premier which must include a list of activities performed as well as the

amounts disbursed in respect of such activities.

NAME OF INSTITUTION AMOUNT ESTIMATE

TRANSFERRED EXPENDITURE

Free State Youth Commission 9 252 000 10 321 000

2.4.4 Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan

See paragraph 2.4.6

2.4.5 Maintenance

The total expenditure with regard to maintenance amounts to R112 000,00 in the

year under review. This was paid to maintain equipment (mostly photocopiers) that

was leased from suppliers.

2.4.6 Asset Management

The Department acquired an electronic asset register that meets the minimum

requirements as required by the asset management reforms.

The existence of all assets in the Department was reconciled with the electronic

asset management system (Logis) of the Department. All moveable assets in the

Department were provided with bar-codes, which simplifies asset management in
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the Department. All new assets are bar-coded immediately upon the receipt there-

of before distribution to the end user.

The annual stock-taking processes of all assets in the Department determine that

the assets are in a good condition and need not be replaced soon. The Depart-

ment strives to replace ICT equipment every three years to ensure that the latest

technology is available in the Department. This arrangement is however subject to

the availability of sufficient funds.
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Report of the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority and Provincial Legislature of

the Free State Provincial Government

1. General review of state of affairs

The total allocation to the Department in the year under review amounted to

R94,856 million compared to R87,199 in the 2005/06 financial year, which repre-

sent an increase of 8.78%. The 2006/07 budget of the Department was overspent

by R2,613 million or 2.75%, which is regarded as unauthorised expenditure in the

financial statements of the Department. The overspending was due to unavoidable

operational expenses such as the strengthening of the capacity of the Free State

Training and Development Institute that could not be postponed until the next

financial year.

The expenditure has been budgeted for in the 2007/08 financial year through

reprioritisation to prevent the recurrence of an overspending.

Although financial and human resources remain one of the major challenges in the

Department, most of its planned outputs could be achieved during the year, which

highlights the improvement in service delivery in the Department since the

previous financial year.

The budget for Programme 1 was supplemented through virement with R1,072

million from savings in Programme 3 to cover the excess expenditure with regard

to the filling of certain critical posts that could not be postponed and unavoidable

day-to-day operational expenses.

2. Services rendered by the Department

The Department was responsible for the following services during the period under

review:

• Render administrative assistance and support to the Premier to ensure that

the Premier's Office functions effectively and efficiently

• Render efficient secretariat services to the Premier, Executive Council,

Cluster Programmes and other Provincial Committees.

• Render efficient and effective Community Liaison and Multi Purpose

Community Centre Services

• Render effective and efficient support services to the Office of the Director

General.

• Give strategic direction and coordinate the activities of Security Managers in

the FSPG and render advice on matters related to security management in

the Department of the Premier.

• Audit accounting, financial and operating systems in the Department of the

Premier by reviewing, measuring and evaluating the effectiveness of these

systems and controls in the Department.

• Ensure sound financial management in the Department of the Premier.

• Facilitate and coordinate the building of transverse capacity within Free

State Provincial Government through the development of skills.

• Provide strategic direction and render advice on human resource matters to

all Provincial Departments.

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
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• Provide strategic direction to Provincial Departments in the FSPG on

matters related to organisational development.

• Provide strategic direction to Provincial Departments in the FSPG on

matters related to institutional enhancement

• Provide strategic direction with regard to the effective utilisation of

information technology and information communication technology in the

FSPG.

• Render legal services to the Premier, Members of the Executive Council, the

Director General, Heads of Department and other officials.

• Create an enabling environment for the Premier, Executive Council and

Director General to communicate important issues to members of the public

and employees.

• Manage a media strategy and ensure that the image of the FSPG and the

Department of the Premier is held in good standing.

• Coordinate and integrate development planning initiatives in the Free State

Province into a Provincial Strategy.

• Monitor and advise on the coordination and implementation of the Free

State Growth and Development Strategy and other Government

Programmes through the cluster monitoring and evaluation system.

• Coordinate and advise on the implementation of major government

programmes in the FSPG including Municipal Infrastructure Grants,

Expanded Public Works Programme, Project Consolidate, Integrated

Sustainable Rural Development Strategy, Urban Renewal Programme etc.

• Establish, facilitate and improve intergovernmental relations between the

FSPG and other governments

• Provide strategic direction, facilitate and coordinate special programmes

(Office on the Status of Women, Office of the Status of Disabled Persons,

Rights of Children, HIV and AIDS Management) in the FSPG.

2.1 Tariff Policy

The Department charge tariffs for the sale of Government Gazette and Provincial

Tender Bulletins. Since these publications are printed in-house, the Department

calculates the annual tariffs of these publications taking into account the following

factors:

• The overall inflation rate,

• The cost of photocopying,

• The cost of paper,

• Cost of the plastic wrapping, 

• Cost of postage, and

• The cost of typing the publications.

The tariffs are then submitted to the Provincial Treasury for approval on an annual basis

and published in the Provincial Gazette.

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
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The tariffs for the 2006/ 2007 financial year were determined as follows:

1. Selling price per copy 2005/2006 2006/2007 %

(over the counter) tariffs tariffs increase

Provincial Gazette R7.60 R7.95 5

Tender Bulletin R5.35 R5.65 6

2. Half-yearly subscription

Provincial Gazette R200.00 R209.50 5

Tender Bulletin R149.00 R156.30 5

3. Annual subscription

Provincial Gazette R399.00 R418.95 5

Tender Bulletin R297.70 R312.60 5

4. Advertising charges per

centimeter

Provincial Gazette R5.95 R8.20 38

Tender Bulletin R5.95 R8.20 38

3. Capacity constraints

The Department's capacity constraints can broadly be summarised as a lack of

financial and human resources. Due to the ever increasing mandates and sub-

sequent activities, a tremendous burden was placed on the existing resources.

The Department had to play, amongst others, a more significant role in providing

strategic leadership and coordination with regard to the following:

• Municipal Infrastructure Grants (MIG)

• Expanded Public Works Programme

• Project Consolidate

• Integrated Sustainable Rural Development Strategy

• Urban Renewal Development Strategy 

• Accelerated Shared Growth Initiative of South Africa

• Improving the credibility of IDP'S and its sign-off by the Premier

• Implementation of the IGR Framework Act 

• Overseeing the implementation of the five year strategic agenda for Local

Government

• Roll out of the Provincial Human Resource Strategy

• Community Outreach Programmes 

• Bucket Eradication Programme

The Department had to re-prioritise and stretch its resources to the limit to ensure

expectations are met. The above-mentioned constraints will have to be addressed

in order to improve the quality of service delivery.

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
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4. Utilisation of donor funds

R228 000.00 of the R7 870 500.00 received from FICA in respect of the SMME

Job Creation Project in December 2006 was spent in the 2006/07 financial year.

5. Trading entities and public entities

There were no trading entities under the Department of the Premier. The Free

State Youth Commission was the only public entity under the authority of the

Department.

6. Organisations to whom transfer payments have been made

The Free State Youth Commission was the only organization that received a

transfer payment of R9, 252m in line with the Transfer Payment Agreement signed

between the Accounting Officers of the Department and the Commission. This

Transfer Payment Agreement details the objectives of the transfer payment and

measures for accountability of the funds. 

7. Corporate governance arrangements

7.1 Risk Management Approach

A high level risk profile was developed as a platform and foundation to be used by

the Department in identifying, managing and controlling the business risks of the

Department.

A key feature of the approach is based on the Risk Management Framework

developed by National Treasury.  This framework sets the parameters for

assessments and integrates control attributes throughout an organization, thus

providing a standard against which each risk is evaluated. The departmental

approach also took into account a similar exercise conducted in 2004 in the

Department of the Premier. 

While specific functional areas were chosen to focus on questions, an integrative

approach was used to determine the types of risks to which the Department is

exposed and to gauge the extent to which they can possibly affect the Depart-

ment's efforts in achieving its of objectives.

The risk assessment processes followed include the following: 

• Identification and confirmation of strategic objectives and key activities of

each directorate.

• A series of discussions with Responsibility Managers of each directorate in

order to identify risks threatening the achievement of its strategic goals and

objectives.

• Assessment of identified risks in terms of the likelihood of occurrence and

impact.

• Assessment of controls which management relies upon to manage these

risks.

• Assessment of areas considered to be lacking in controls and which require

management actions.

This risk management framework was developed based on the operational plans

emanating from the departmental strategic plan, where Responsibility Managers
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identified risks that threatened their key activities. Responsibility Managers were

then required to provide inputs based on their knowledge and experiences of the

directorate's operations and environment. 

7.2 Fraud Prevention Plan

Based on the Departmental Strategic Plan, Operational Plan, Risk Management

framework, Provincial Anti-Corruption Strategy and Fraud Red flags, the Fraud

prevention plan was compiled, together with a fraud policy statement.

This framework integrated controls attributes throughout the Department, in which

there was a buy-in from each component to identify risks and possible fraud areas

and integrate them. While functional areas participated to focus on questions, an

integrated approach was used to determine probability of fraud based on risk

areas identified.

The fraud prevention process included the following:

• Identification of the probability of fraud, based on risk areas identified as per

the risk assessment document.

• A series of discussions with Responsibility Managers of each directorate in

order to identify probability of fraud, based on risk areas and also where

there is lack on internal controls.

• Identification of priority areas of high risk that could lead to possible fraud.

• Defining dimensions of fraudulent activities.

• Defining dimensions of corruption and related corrupt activities.

7.3 Audit Committee and Internal Audit

The Audit Committee and Internal Audit unit has been functional since September 2005,

both Audit Committee and Internal Audit have been established in terms of section

38(1)(a)(ii) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) as amended and

paragraph 3.2 of Treasury Regulations.

The responsibility of Internal Audit amongst others include: 

• Reviewing and appraising the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of

internal control.

• Appraising the relevance, reliability and integrity of management, financial

and operating data and reports.

• Reviewing the systems established to ensure compliance with those

policies, plans, procedures, statutory requirements and regulations which

could have a significant impact to the Department.

• Reviewing the means of safeguarding assets and, as appropriate, verifying

the existence of such assets.

• Appraising the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources

are employed.

• Reviewing operations or programs to ascertain whether results are

consistent with the Department's objectives and goals.

• Assessing the adequacy of established systems and procedures.

• Conducting special assignments and investigations on behalf of the

Accounting Officer into any matter or activity affecting the probity, interests

and operating efficiency.
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The Internal Audit Unit completed the following Internal Audit Reviews for the

2006/2007 Financial Year in terms of approved Annual Internal Audit Plan.

(i) Fixed Assets

(ii) Supply Chain Management

(iii) Free State Training and Development Institute

(iv) Petty Cash

(v) Physical Cash Control

(vi) Revenue

The Audit Committee must amongst others review the following:

• The effectiveness of the internal control systems and the internal audit

function.

• The risk areas to be covered in the scope of internal and external audits.

• The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information.

• Any accounting and auditing concerns identified by the internal and/or

external audits.

• Compliance with legal and regulatory provisions.

• The activities of the internal audit function.

For the Financial Year 2006/2007 Audit Committee held four quarterly meetings.

The following documents were approved by the Audit Committee in order to direct

the activities of Internal Audit Unit:

• Internal Audit Charter

• Audit Committee Charter

• Three Year Strategic Internal Audit Plan

• Annual Internal Audit Plan

• Risk Management Document.

Internal Audit Unit accounts functionally to the Audit Committee and reports to the 

Accounting Officer.

7.4 Other Governance Structures

The Department has implemented a system to manage the conflict of interest of

employees by ensuring that members of the Bid Adjudication Committee sign an

attendance subjected to make a declaration of interests.

7.5 Requirements of King II report regarding the responsibility of the

Accounting Officer

The Accounting Officer is the custodian of the corporate governance system in the

Department and is ultimately accountable and responsible for the performance

and affairs of the Department.

The Accounting Officer gives strategic direction to the Department.

The Accounting Officer retains full and effective control over the Department and

monitor management in implementing Departmental plans and strategies.

The Accounting Officer ensures that the Department complies with all relevant

laws, regulations and codes of business practices and thus, communicates with all

relevant stakeholders (internally and externally).
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The Accounting Officer is responsible for the total process of risk management as

well as providing a qualified opinion on the effectiveness of the process.

Management is accountable to the Accounting Officer for designing, implementing

and monitoring the process of risk management and integrating it into day-to-day

activities of the Department. 

The Accounting Officer maintains an effective system of internal control and risk

management, through appointment of Internal Audit Unit and Audit Committee.

8. Discontinued activities / activities to be discontinued

The Department did not discontinue any activities nor aim to discontinue any

activities during the next financial year as all activities are absolute prerequisites

for fulfilling the mandates of government as a whole. On the contrary, creative

ways of strengthening all programmes will have to be found to ensure that all

activities are implemented, specifically with reference to resources. 

9. New / proposed activities

Due to the review of the Free State Growth and Development Strategy and

national policy imperatives the Department of the Premier will, in the next financial

year, be saddled with the responsibility to co-ordinate and provide strategic

direction to the National Youth Service Programme, the Five Year Local

Government Strategic Agenda, ASGISA, as well as a more direct responsibility for

Community Development Workers and the Provincial House of Traditional

Leaders.

10. Inventory balance on hand at year end 2006/2007

The following are the inventories on hand at 31 March 2007

Major categories Costing method Amount

Food and food supplies Weighted average cost 5,381.16

Stationary and printing Weighted average cost 224,480.24

TOTAL 229,861.40
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11.1 PROPAC resolutions

Reference to Subject Progress made on PROPAC resolution

PROPAC

resolution

PROPAC: Unauthorized, (a) The Provincial Treasury presented a training

22 June 2006 irre¬gular and session on unauthorized, irregular, fruitless

Resolution fruitless and and wasteful expenditure on the 15th May 2006

86/2005 wasteful which two officials from the Financial

Paragraph: 2 expenditure Management Services attended to strengthen

on-the-job-training by the Department to all

whose responsibilities include financial manage-

ment. The training by the Treasury as well as

the department's efforts add more value to the

awareness of this matter by all officials in the

department. The Responsibility Managers are

continuously encouraged to submit unauthorized,

irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure

on a monthly basis.

(b) All the reports required by the Provincial

Treasury on a monthly basis from the depart-

ment have been built into an operational plan

and this in turn forms part of the Senior

Manager's performance contract. Included in

the reports was a compliance certificate which

required a certification that all unauthorized,

irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure for

the period which had been reported.  Due care

will continuously be taken to ensure that the dis-

closures of any unauthorised, irregular or fruit-

less and wasteful expenditure are correctly cap-

tured in the financial statements and records.

(c) Provisions of Treasury Regulations will be ad-

hered to.

PROPAC: Policy for No overseas study assistance was granted to any

22 June 2006 granting official in the Department of the Premier. It is not

Resolution overseas envisaged that such assistance will be granted to

87/2005 study any official in the foreseeable future, but should the

assistance situation arise, due regard will be given to any 

existing policy.
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Reference to Subject Progress made on PROPAC resolution

PROPAC

resolution

PROPAC: Thefts and 1. The department always insists on a case 

22 June 2006 losses number to be recorded in its lost control

Resolution register when a loss or damage is reported by

88/2005 any official in the department.

2. The following measures are applied in the

Department of the Premier to safeguard Govern-

ment assets:

� The Department implemented a system to

ensure that all assets of the Department

have a unique numbering and a bar-code.

� Procedures are in place to monitor the

movement of assets between different

sections and programmes.

� A Departmental Security Committee was

appointed to engage and advise the Head

of the Department regarding security and a

policy is being developed.

� The Department has worked with the

Department of Public Works, Roads and

Transport that control access to the Lebo-

hang Building to implement an Asset

Removal Permit System in the building to

prevent thefts and losses from the building

PROPAC: Late payment The following measures are applied in the

22 June 2006 of creditors Department of the Premier to ensure that pay-

Resolution ments to creditors are effected within the 30-day

89/2005 period and in terms of Treasury Regulation 8.2.3:

� The Department uses the LOGIS system to

effect payments to all creditors and the

system allows the Department to monitor all

official orders issued, trace all orders issued

and which payments have not been effected

and to investigate and finalise the trans-

actions.

� Over and above that the Department has

initiated a regular reporting system (weekly)

to enable outstanding orders to be tracked

and reported on. All payments were done in

even less than 30 days on a continuous

basis.

PROPAC: Purchasing of The official vehicle of the Premier was procured

22 June 2006 vehicles for within the relevant provisions and the purchase

Resolution Members of price did not exceed the amount prescribed in the

89/2005 the Executive handbook for Members of the Executive and 

Committee Presiding Officers.
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Reference to Subject Progress made on PROPAC resolution

PROPAC

resolution

PROPAC: Directives The provisions of Section 64 of the PFMA are duly

22 June 2006 received from observed when any directive with financial im-

Resolution Members of plications from the Premier is received.

89/2005 the Executive

Council

PROPAC: Feedback on Progress reports on the resolutions can only be

20 Sept. 2006 the imple- provided on the response to the resolution as 

Resolution mentation of formulated by the Executive Council of the Free

18/2006 resolutions State Provincial Government.

PROPAC: Feedback to The resolution will be complied with by the

20 Sept. 2006 resolutions - Accounting Officer of the Department of the

Resolution Accounting Premier.

19/2006 Officers invited

to attend

sittings

PROPAC: Outstanding • Resolution 18/2003 - Agri-Eco transfer of 

01 Dec. 2006 replies to immovable property

Resolution resolutions The progress report is pending from the

26/2006 Administrators of Agri-Eco.

• Resolution 35/2004 - Review provincial bursaries

The Human Resource Management and

Development Strategy (HRMDS) of the Free

State Provincial Government has been finalised

and approved by the Executive Council. The

HRMDS will form the basis of the review of the

provincial bursary policy. Some work has

already commenced towards the review of the

existing bursary policy.

• Resolution 2/2005

(3) Irregular expenditure / Overtime policy

An overtime policy for the Department has 

been approved and implemented.

(4) Premier's Economic Advisory Council (PEAC)

The final audited financial statements of the

PEAC has been received and will be for-

warded to the Auditor General.

• Resolution 85/2005 - Qualifications and 

experience of accounting officer and Chief 

Financial Officer

The qualifications and experience of the 

Accounting Officer and Chief Financial Officer 

was submitted to the Public Accounts Committee.
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Reference to Subject Progress made on PROPAC resolution

PROPAC

resolution

PROPAC: Intergovern- The Department of the Premier noted the resolution

01 Dec. 2006 mental of the Legislature regarding intergovernmental

Resolution receivables receivables and payables.

50/2006 and payables

PROPAC: Strategic The Department of the Premier noted the resolution

01 Dec. 2006 Plans of the Legislature. Measures have already been

Resolution implemented by the Department of the Premier to

51/2006 deal with the recommendations of the Committee.

PROPAC: Availability of Specific measures are agreed upon each year

01 Dec. 2006 Accounting with the Auditor General on the management

Resolution Officers and of the relationship between the Department of the

52/2006 Senior Premier and the Office of the Auditor General

Management during the audit processes. These measures have

during the been successfully implemented.

audit process

PROPAC: Performance Financial management is one of the compulsory

01 Dec. 2006 Agreements core management criteria in the Performance

Resolution of Accounting Agreements of Heads of Department of which

53/2006 Officers of correct financial statements, reflecting the extent 

Municipalities of financial management, is an indispensable part.

and Provincial

Departments

DR. MC NWAILA

DIRECTOR GENERAL

Date: 31 July 2007
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE FREE STATE LEGISLATURE ON

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION OF VOTE 1 -

DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Department of the

Premier which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2007,

appropriation statement, statement of financial performance, statement of

changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out

on pages 84 to 126.

Responsibility of the accounting officer for the financial statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of

these financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of

accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set out in accounting policy

1.1 to the financial statements and in the manner required by the Public Finance

Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). This responsibility includes:

• designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

• selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies

• making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Responsibility of the Auditor-General

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa,

1996 read with section 4 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004), my

responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my

audit.

4. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing

and General Notice 647 of 2007, issued in Government Gazette No. 29919 of 25
May 2007. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In

making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to

the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal

control.

6. An audit also includes evaluating the:

• appropriateness of accounting policies used

• reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management

• overall presentation of the financial statements.
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7. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Basis of accounting

8. The department's policy is to prepare financial statements on the modified cash

basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set out in accounting

policy 1.1 to the financial statements.

Opinion

9. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of the Department of the Premier as at 31 March 2007 and its

financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with

the modified cash basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set

out in accounting policy 1.1 to the financial statements, and in the manner required

by the PFMA.

OTHER MATTERS

I draw attention to the following matters that are ancillary to my responsibilities in the

audit of the financial statements:

Material non-compliance with applicable legislation

10. Treasury Regulations, 2005

a) Contrary to paragraph 15.5.1 of the Treasury Regulations, 2005, the department

did not pay all revenue received exceeding R500 into its Paymaster-General

account on a daily basis.

b) The strategic plan for the years 2006-07 to 2008-09 did not comply with paragraph

5.2.2 of the Treasury Regulations, 2005, as it did not include:

• details of proposed acquisitions of fixed or movable capital assets,

rehabilitation and maintenance of physical assets

• details of proposed acquisitions of financial assets and plans for the

management of financial assets and liabilities or

• multi-year projections of income.

Delay in finalisation of audit

11. Due to the national public sector strike action during June 2007 the Auditor-

General had to delay the finalisation of affected departments. As a result, the

Auditor-General's consistency review process of the audit reports could only be

conducted subsequent to 31 July 2007, the consequence of which was a delay in

the finalisation of the audit of this department for the 2006-07 financial year.

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

Reporting on performance information

12. I have audited the performance information as set out on pages 21 to 67.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer

13. The accounting officer has additional responsibilities as required by section

40(3)(a) of the PFMA to ensure that the annual report and audited financial

statements fairly present the performance against predetermined objectives of the

department.
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Responsibility of the Auditor-General

14. I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the Public Audit Act,

2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) read with General Notice 646 of 2007, issued in

Government Gazette No. 29919 of 25 May 2007.

15. In terms of the foregoing my engagement included performing procedures of an

audit nature to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the performance

information and related systems, processes and procedures. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor's judgement.

16. I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for the audit findings reported below.

Audit findings

Lack of reporting on all predetermined objectives in annual report

17. Draw attention to the fact that the department has not reported on all the pre-

determined objectives as required by section 40(3)(a) of the PFMA. 

The following objectives according to the strategic plan were not achieved and no

detailed explanations were provided in the annual report for not achieving the

planned objectives:

a) Monitor the implementation of the executive council and forum of heads of

departments

b) Conduct advocacy programmes on equity and equality, lobby and raise

awareness

c) Develop and distribute advocacy information or material with regard to special

programmes and ensure accessibility to stakeholders

d) Develop education material per quarter, contribute to publication and develop

user-friendly fact sheets for deaf people 

Objectives reported in the annual report, but not predetermined as per the

strategic plan

18. I draw attention to the fact that the department reported on the objective, Imbizo

focus week held as approved by the executive council, in the annual report,

although it was not included as a predetermined objective in the strategic plan.

APPRECIATION

19. The assistance rendered by the staff of the Department of the Premier during the

audit is sincerely appreciated.

S Cele for Auditor-General

Bloemfontein

31 August 2007
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The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the following

policies, which have been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless

otherwise indicated. However, where appropriate and meaningful, additional infor-

mation has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the Financial Statements

and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management

Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations

issued in terms of the Act and the Division of Revenue Act, Act 2 of 2006.

1. Presentation of the Financial Statements

1.1 Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis of

accounting, except where stated otherwise. The modified cash basis constitutes

the cash basis of accounting supplemented with additional disclosure items.

1.2 Presentation currency

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R),

which is also the functional currency of the department.

1.3 Rounding

Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one

thousand Rand (R'000).

1.4 Comparative figures

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year's

financial statements. Where necessary, figures included in the prior period

financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the

information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year's financial

statements.

1.5 Comparative figures - Appropriation Statement

A comparison between actual amounts and final appropriation per major classi-

fication of expenditure is included in the appropriation statement.

2. Revenue

2.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated and adjusted appropriated funds are recognised in the financial

records on the date the appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments to the

appropriated funds made in terms of the adjustments budget process are

recognised in the financial records on the date the adjustments become effective.

Total appropriated funds are presented in the statement of financial performance.

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the Provincial Revenue Fund.

Amounts owing to the Provincial Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are

recognised in the statement of financial position.

2.2 Departmental revenue

All departmental revenue is paid into the Provincial Revenue Fund when received,

unless otherwise stated.  Amounts owing to the Provincial Revenue Fund at the

end of the financial year are recognised in the statement of financial position.

Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclosure notes to

the annual financial statements.
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2.2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

The proceeds received from the sale of goods and/or the provision of services are

recognised in the statement of financial performance when the cash is received.

2.2.2 Interest, dividends and rent on land

Interest, dividends and rent on land are recognised in the statement of financial

performance when the cash is received.

2.2.3 Sale of capital assets

The proceeds received on sale of capital assets are recognised in the statement

of financial performance when the cash is received.

2.2.4 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Repayments of loans and advances previously extended to employees and public

corporations for policy purposes are recognised as revenue in the statement of

financial performance on receipt of the funds.

Cheques issued in previous accounting periods that expire before being banked

are recognised as revenue in the statement of financial performance when the

cheque becomes stale. When the cheque is reissued the payment is made from

Revenue.

Forex gains are recognised on payment of funds.

2.2.5 Gifts, donations and sponsorships (transfers received)

All cash gifts, donations and sponsorships are paid into the Provincial Revenue

Fund and recorded as revenue in the statement of financial performance when

received.  Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclosure

notes to the financial statements.

All in-kind gifts, donations and sponsorships are disclosed at fair value in the

Annexures to the financial statements.

2.3 Local and foreign aid assistance

Local and foreign aid assistance are recognised as revenue when the department

directly receives the cash from the donor(s).

All in-kind local and foreign aid assistance are disclosed at fair value in the

Annexures to the annual financial statements.

The cash payments made during the year relating to local and foreign aid

assistance projects are recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial

performance. The value of the assistance expensed prior to the receipt of the

funds is recognized as a receivable in the statement of financial position.

Inappropriately expensed amounts using local and foreign aid assistance and any

unutilised amounts are recognised as payables in the statement of financial

position.

3. Expenditure

3.1 Compensation of employees

Salaries and wages comprise payments to employees. Salaries and wages are

recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance when the final
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authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of

each year).

All other payments are classified as current expense.

Social contributions include the employer's contribution to social insurance

schemes paid on behalf of the employee. Social contributions are recognised as

an expense in the statement of financial performance when the final authorisation

for payment is effected on the system.

3.1.1 Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits comprise of leave entitlements (including capped

leave), thirteenth cheques and performance bonuses.  The cost of short-term

employee benefits is expensed as salaries and wages in the statement of financial

performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system

(by no later than 31 March of each year).

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive

obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements. These

amounts are not recognised in the statement of financial performance.

3.1.2 Long-term employee benefits

3.1.2.1Termination benefits

Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised as an expense

in the statement of financial performance as a transfer (to households) when the

final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 

31 March of each year).

3.1.2.2Post employment retirement benefits

The department provides retirement benefits (pension benefits) for certain of its

employees through a defined benefit plan for government employees. These

benefits are funded by both employer and employee contributions. Employer

contributions to the fund are expensed when the final authorisation for payment to

the fund is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). No

provision is made for retirement benefits in the financial statements of the

department. Any potential liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements of the

Provincial Revenue Fund and not in the financial statements of the employer

department.

The department provides medical benefits for certain of its employees. Employer

contributions to the medical funds are expensed when the final authorisation for

payment to the fund is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each

year).

3.2 Goods and services

Payments made for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense in the

statement of financial performance when the final authorisation for payment is

effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). The expense is

classified as capital if the goods and services were used for a capital project or an

asset of R5 000.00 or more is purchased. All assets costing less than  R5 000.00

will also be reflected under goods and services.
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3.3 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written-off are limited

to the amount of savings and/or under-spending of appropriated funds. The write

off occurs at year-end or when funds are available. No provision is made for

irrecoverable amounts but amounts are disclosed as a disclosure note.

All other losses are recognised when authorisation has been granted for the

recognition thereof.

3.4 Unauthorised expenditure

When discovered, unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the

statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure is either approved

by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible person or written off as

irrecoverable in the statement of financial performance.

Unauthorised expenditure, approved with funding, is recognised in the statement

of financial performance when the unauthorised expenditure is approved and the

related funds are received.  Where the amount is approved without funding it is

recognised as expenditure, subject to availability of savings, in the statement of

financial performance on the date of approval.

3.5 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial

performance. If the expenditure is not condoned by the relevant authority it is

treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as irrecoverable.

3.6 Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the final authori-

sation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each

year).

3.7 Expenditure for capital assets

Payments made for capital assets are recognised as an expense in the statement

of financial performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the

system (by no later than 31 March of each year)

4. Assets

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at

cost.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise

cash on hand, deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank

overdrafts.

4.2 Prepayments and advances

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the statement of financial position when

the payments are made.

4.3 Receivables

Receivables included in the statement of financial position arise from cash

payments made that are recoverable from another party.
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Revenue receivable not yet collected is included in the disclosure notes. Amounts

that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

4.4 Inventory

Inventories purchased during the financial year are disclosed at cost in the notes.

4.5 Capital assets

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is

defined as the total cost of acquisition. Where the cost cannot be determined

accurately, the capital asset may be stated at fair value. Where fair value cannot

be determined, the capital asset is included in the asset register at R1.

Disclosure Notes 28 and 29 reflect the total movement in the asset register for the

current financial year.

5. Liabilities

5.1 Payables

Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other governmental

entities. These payables are recognised at historical cost in the statement of

financial position.

5.2 Lease commitments

Lease commitments represent amounts owing from the reporting date to the end

of the lease contract. These commitments are not recognised in the statement of

financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial perfor-

mance, but are included in the disclosure notes.

Operating and finance lease commitments are expensed when the payments are

made. Assets acquired in terms of finance lease agreements are disclosed in the

disclosure notes to the financial statements.

5.3 Accruals

Accruals represent goods/services that have been received, but where no invoice

has been received from the supplier at the reporting date, or where an invoice has

been received but final authorisation for payment has not been effected on the

system.

Accruals are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or

as expenditure in the statement of financial performance, but are included in the

disclosure notes.

5.4 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and

whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of

one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the depart-

ment; or

A contingent liability is a present obligation that arises from past events but is not

recognised because:

• It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or

• The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes.
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5.5 Commitments

Commitments represent goods/services that have been approved and/or

contracted, but where no delivery has taken place at the reporting date.

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability

or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance but are included in the

disclosure notes.

6. Net Assets

6.1 Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a

previous financial year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial

year.

7. Related party transactions

Related parties are departments that control or significantly influence entities in

making financial and operating decisions. Specific information with regards to

related party transactions is included in the disclosure notes.

8. Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsi-

bility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the department.

Compensation paid to key management personnel including their family members

where relevant, is included in the disclosure notes.
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Appropriation per programme

2006/07 2005/06 

Adjusted

appropriation

Shifting

of  funds
Virement

Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure 
Variance 

Expenditure

as % of

final

appropriation

Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 

1. Administration 

 Current payment 24,695 (21) 1072 25,746 25,801 (55) 100.2% 33,936 33,432 

Transfers and subsidies 13 - - 13 49 (36) 376.9% 128 184 

Payment for capital assets 232 21 - 253 161 92 63.6% 354 385 

2. Corporate Support

Current payment 33,410 (485) - 32,925 34,424 (1,499) 104.6% 28,441 26,627 

Transfers and subsidies 62 485 - 547 545 2 99.6% 122 104 

Payment for capital assets 233 - - 233 194 39 83.3% 475 746 

3. Policy and Governance 

Current payment 26,382 (22) (1,072) 25,288 25,789 (501) 102.0% 13,779 13,054 

Transfers and subsidies 9,266 - - 9,266 9,272 (6) 100.1% 9,568 9,559 

Payment for capital assets 563 22 - 585 333 252 56.9% 396 307 

4.  Special Function

Current payment - - - - 516 (516) 0.0% 1,701 

Subtotal 94,856 - - 94,856 97,084 (2,228) 102.3% 87,199 86,099 

Statutory Appropriation - - - - - - - - - 

 TOTAL 94,856 - - 94,856 (2,228) 102.3% 87,199 

Reconciliation with Statement of Financial Performance

Add:

Local and foreign aid assistance received 7,854 - 

Actual amounts per Statements of Financial Performance (Total revenue) 102,710 87,199 

Add:

Local and foreign aid assistance 228 

Actual amounts per Statements of Financial Performance (Total expenditure) 97,312  86,099 

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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Appropriation per economic classification

2006/07 2005/06 

Adjusted

appropriation

Shifting of

funds Virement

Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure Variance 

Expenditure

as % of final

appropriation

Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 

Current payments

Compensation of employees 59,563 (1,333) (1,072) 57,158 56,642 516 99.1% 50,110 48,692 

Goods and services 24,924 805 1,072 26,801 29,372 (2,571) 109.6% 26,046 24,421 
Financial transactions in assets
and liabilities

- - - - 516 (516) 0.0% - 1,701 

Transfers and subsidies  
Provinces and municipalities 47 - - 47 47 - 100.0% 201 175 
Departmental agencies and 
accounts

9,252 - - 9,252 9,252 - 100.0% 9,531 9,531 

Households 42 485 - 527 567 (40) 107.6% 86 141 
Payments for capital assets 

Machinery and equipment 1,028 43 - 1,071 688 383 64.2% 1,162 1,295 
Software and other intangible 
assets

- - - - - - - 63 143 

Total 94,856 - - 94,856 97,084 (2,228) 102.3% 87,199 86,099 

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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2006/07 2005/06 

Programme per subprogramme

Adjusted

appropriation

Shifting of

funds

Virement Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure Variance 

Expenditure

as % of

final

appropriation

Final 

appropriati

on 

Actual

expenditure 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 

1.1 Premier Support

Current payment 6,832 168 546 7,546 7,613 (67) 100.9% 8,033 7,780 
Transfers and subsidies 3 - - 3 3 - 100.0% 15 16 

Payment for capital assets 6 - - 6 5 1 83.3% - -
1.2 Executive Council Support

Current payment 2,584 (136) - 2,448 2,416 32 98.7% 2,317 2,276 
Transfers and subsidies 2 - - 2 35 (33) 1,750.0% 10 6 

Payment for capital assets 23 - - 23 20 3 87.0% 10 49 
1.3 Director General

Current payment 5,671 42 526 6,239 6,259 (20) 100.3% 10,168 9,982 

Transfers and subsidies 3 - - 3 3 - 100.0% 22 39 
 Payment for capital assets 203 - - 203 63 140 31.0% 179 195 

1.4 Financial Management
 Current payment 9,608 (95) - 9,513 9,513 - 100.0% 13,418 13,394 

Transfers and subsidies 5 - - 5 8 (3) 160.0% 81 123 
 Payment for capital assets - 21 - 21 73 (52) 347.6% 165 141 

TOTAL 24,940 - 1,072 26,012 26,011 1 100.0% 34,418 34,001 

2006/07 2005/06 

Economic classification

Adjusted

appropriation

Shifting of

funds Virement

Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure 

Variance 

Expenditure

as % of final

appropriation

Final 

appropriati

on 

Actual

 expenditure 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 

Current payment
Compensation of employees 16,034 - 395 16,429 16,430 (1) 100.0% 22,055 21,479 
Goods and services 8,661 (21) 677 9,317 9,371 (54) 100.6% 11,881 11,953 

Transfers and subsidies to:
Provinces and municipalities 13 - - 13 12 1 92.3% 83 75 
Households - - - - 37 (37) 0.0% 45 109 
Payment  for  capital assets 

Machinery and equipment 232 21 - 253 161 92 63.6% 354 385 

Total 24,940 - 1,072 26,012 26,011 1 100.0% 34,418 34,001 

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 1 - ADMINISTRATION
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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2006/07 2005/06 

Programme per subprogramme

Adjusted

appropriation

Shifting of

funds

Virement Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure Variance 

Expenditure

as % of

final

appropriation

Final 

appropriati

on 

Actual

expenditure 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 

2.1   Strategic Human
  Resources 

 Current payment 18,191 (719) 45 17,517 17,384 133 99.2% 13,864 12,236 
Transfers and subsidies 12 474 - 486 485 1 99.8% 44 38 
Payment for capital assets 108 - - 108 98 10 90.7% 212 434 

2.2 Information Communication
Technology

 Current payment 6,508 314 - 6,822 6,856 (34) 100.5% 5,667 5,598 

Transfers and subsidies 20 11 - 31 31 - 100.0% 9 10 
Payment for capital 
 assets

14 - - 14 39 (25) 278.6% 139 188 

2.3 Legal Services
 Current payment 2,212 (45) (45) 2,122 1,994 128 94.0% 1,931 1,809 

Transfers and subsidies 1 - - 1 1 - 100.0% 6 6 
 Payment for capital assets 111 - - 111 43 68 38.7% - -

2.4 Communication Services
 Current payment 6,499 (35) - 6,464 8,190 (1,726) 126.7% 6,979 6,984 

Transfers and subsidies 29 - - 29 28 1 96.6% 63 50 
 Payment for capital assets - - - - 14 (14)) 0.0% 124 124 

TOTAL 33,705 - - 33,705 35,163 (1,458) 104.3% 29,038 27,477 

2006/07 2005/06 

Economic classification

Adjusted

appropriation

Shifting of

funds Virement

Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure

Variance 

Expenditure

as % of final

appropriation

Final 

appropriati

on 

Actual

 expenditure 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 

Current payment

Compensation of employees 24,638 (781) (395) 23,462 22,993 469 98.0% 18,853 18,471 
Goods and services 8,772 296 395 9,463 11,431 (1,968) 120.8% 9,588 8,156 
Transfers and subsidies to:
Provinces and municipalities 20 - - 20 20 - 100.0% 81 72 
Households 42 485 - 527 525 2 99.6% 41 32 

Payment  for  capital assets 
Machinery and equipment 233 - - 233 194 39 83.3% 412 672 
Software and other intangible 
assets

- - - - - - - 63 74

Total 33,705 - - 33,705 35,163 (1,458) 104.3% 29,038 27,477 

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 2 - CORPORATE SUPPORT
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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2006/07 2005/06 

Programme per subprogramme

Adjusted

appropriation

Shifting of

funds

Virement Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure Variance 

Expenditure

as % of

final

appropriation

Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 

3.1 Human Rights 

 Current payment 8,774 725 (395) 9,104 6,909 2,194 75.9% 3,823 3,779 
Transfers and subsidies 9,256 - - 9,256 9,256 - 100.0% 8,838 8,836 

Payment for capital assets 404 - - 404 15 389 3.7% 135 116 
3.2 Intergovernmental

Relations
 Current payment 2,997 50 - 3,047 3,335 (288) 109.5% 2,287 2,076 

Transfers and subsidies 2 - - 2 1 1 50.0% 8 4 
Payment for capital 
 assets

- - - - - - - 35 35

3.3 Provincial Policy 
Management

 Current payment 14,611 (797) (677) 13,137 15,545 (2,408) 118.3% 7,669 7,199 
Transfers and subsidies 8 - - 8 15 (7) 187.5% 722 719 

 Payment for capital assets 159 22 - 181 318 (137) 175.7% 226 156 

TOTAL 36,211 - (1,072) 35,139 35,394 (252) 100.7% 23,743 22,920 

2006/07 2005/06 

Economic classification

Adjusted

appropriation

Shifting of

funds Virement

Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure 

Variance 

Expenditure

as % of final

appropriation

Final 

appropriation

Actual

 expenditure 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 

Current payment
Compensation of employees 18,891 (552) (1,072) 17,267 17,219 48 99.7% 9,202 8,742 

Goods and services 7,491 530 - 8,021 8,570 (549) 106.8% 4,577 4,312 
Transfers and subsidies to:
Provinces and municipalities 14 - - 14 15 (1) 107.1% 37 28 
Departmental agencies and 
accounts

9,252 - - 9,252 9,252 - 100.0% 9,531 9,531 

Households - - - - 5 (5) 0.0% - - 
Payment  for  capital assets 
Machinery and equipment 563 22 - 585 333 252 56.9% 396 238 
Software and other intangible 
assets

- - - - - - - - 69

Total 36,211 - (1,072) 35,139 35,394 (252) 100.7% 23,743 22,920 

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 3 - POLICY AND GOVERNANCE
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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2006/07 2005/06 

Programme per subprogramme

Adjusted

appropriation

Shifting of

funds

Virement Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure Variance 

Expenditure

as % of

final

appropriation

Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 

4.1 Administration
 Current payment - - - - 516 (516) 0.0% - 1,701 

TOTAL - - - - 516 (516) 0.0% - 1,701 

2006/07 2005/06 

Economic Classification

Adjusted

appropriation

Shifting of

funds Virement

Final 

appropriation

Actual

expenditure 

Variance 

Expenditure

as % of final

appropriation

Final 

appropriation

Actual

 expenditure 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 

Current payment

Financial transactions in assets
and liabilities

- - - - 516 (516) 0.0% - 1,701 

Total - - - - 516 (516) 0.0% - 1,701 

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

DETAIL PER PROGRAMME 4 - SPECIAL FUNCTION
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in Note 7 (Transfers and subsidies) and

Annexure 1(A-C) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after

Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in Note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the

Annual Financial Statements.

3. Detail on financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in Note 6 (Financial

transactions in assets and liabilities) to the Annual Financial Statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):

4.1 Per Programme Final Actual Variance Variance as a % of

appropriation expenditure R'000 final appropriation

R'000 R'000 R'000 %

Administration 26,012 26,011 1 0.0%

The variance in this programme is insignificant.

Corporate Support 33,705 35,163 (1,458) -4.3%

The overspending in this programme is due to unavoidable operational expenses.

Policy and Governance 35,139 35,394 (255) -0.7%

The variance in this programme is insignificant.

Special Function - 516 (516) 0.0%

Due to the unforeseen write-off of irrecoverable debts and the principle of not budgeting

for bad debts.

Department of the Premier - Annual Report
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4.2 Per Economic classification 2006/07 2005/06

R'000 R'000

Current expenditure:

Compensation of employees 516 1,418

The variance is due to posts not filled during the year and filled posts that became

vacant during the year which resulted in a saving.

Goods and services (2,571) 1,625

The overspending in this programme is due to unavoidable operational expenses.

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities (516) (1,701)

The variance is due to the unforeseen write-off of irrecoverable debts and the

principle of not budgeting for bad debts.

Transfers and subsidies:

Provinces and municipalities - 26

Households (40) (55)

The variance is due to the unforeseen expenditure with regard to leave gratuity

of officials who left the service during the year.

Payments for capital assets:

Machinery and equipment 383 (133)

The purchase of capital equipment was delayed because the posts for which

the equipment was earmarked, were not filled during the year. According to the

information technology policy the department may not buy equipment for a

particular post while that post is vacant.

Software and other intangible assets - (80)

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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Note 2006/07 2005/06

R'000 R'000

REVENUE

Annual appropriation 1 94,856 87,199

Local and foreign aid assistance 3 7,854 -

TOTAL REVENUE 102,710 87,199

EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees 4 56,642 48,692

Goods and services 5 29,372 24,421

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 6 516 1,701

Local and foreign aid assistance 3 228 -

Total current expenditure 86,758 74,814

Transfers and subsidies 7 9,866 9,847

Expenditure for capital assets

Machinery and equipment 8 688 1,295

Software and other intangible assets 8 - 143

Total expenditure for capital assets 688 1,438

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 97,312 86,099

SURPLUS 5,398 1,100

Add back unauthorised expenditure 9 2,613 -

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 8,011 1,100

Reconciliation of Surplus for the year

Voted funds to be surrendered to the revenue fund 13 385 1,100

Local and foreign aid assistance 3 7,626 -

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 8,011 1,100

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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Note 2006/07 2005/06

R'000 R'000

ASSETS

Current assets 9,238 2,424

Unauthorised expenditure 9 2,613 -

Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,136 223

Prepayments and advances 11 22 131

Receivables 12 1,467 2,070

TOTAL ASSETS 9,238 2,424

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 8,897 1,914

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 13 385 1,100

Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 14 869 807

Payables 15 17 7

Local and foreign aid assistance unutilised 3 7,626 -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,897 1,914

NET ASSETS 341 510

Represented by:

Recoverable revenue 341 510

TOTAL 341 510

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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Note 2006/07 2005/06

R'000 R'000

Recoverable revenue

Opening balance 510 1,025

Transfers (169) (515)

Irrecoverable amounts written off 6.5 (64) (546)

Debts recovered (included in departmental revenue) (288) (114)

Debts raised 183 145

Closing balance 341 510

TOTAL 341 510

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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Note 2006/07 2005/06

R'000 R'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts 104,808 89,292

Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 94,856 87,199

Departmental revenue received 2,098 2,093

Local and foreign aid assistance received 3 7,854 -

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital (1,891) 4,488

Surrendered to Revenue Fund (3,136) (6,236)

Current payments (86,758) (74,814)

Unauthorised expenditure - Current year 2,613 -

Transfers and subsidies paid (9,866) (9,847)

Net cash flow available from operating activities 16 5,770 2,883

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for capital assets (688) (1,438)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2 - 1

Net cash flows from investing activities (688) (1,437)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase/(decrease) in net assets (169) (515)

Net cash flows from financing activities (169) (515)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,913 931

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 223 (708)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 17 5,136 223

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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1. Annual Appropriation

1.1 Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act.

Funds not Appropriation

Final Actual funds requested/ received

appropriation received not received 2005/06

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Administration 26,012 26,012 - 34,418

Corporate Support 33,705 33,705 - 29,038

Policy and Governance 35,139 35,139 - 23,743

Total 94,856 94,856 - 87,199

2. Departmental revenue to be surrendered to revenue fund

Description

(Specify material amounts separately)

Note 2006/07 2005/06

Tax revenue

Sales of goods and services other than

capital assets 2.1 1,135 1,260

Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.2 86 157

Sales of capital assets 2.3 - 1

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 2.4 394 666

Transfer received 2.5 483 10

Total revenue collected 2,098 2,094

Less: Departmental Revenue Budgeted 14 2,098 2,094

Departmental revenue collected - -

The comparative figure for Departmental revenue budgeted has been restated to

be comparable with the current year's figures.

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

Sales of goods and services produced by the department1,129 1,257

Administrative fees 67 63

Other sales 1,062 1,194

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods 6 3

Total 1,135 1,260

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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2.2 Interest, dividends and rent on land and buildings

Interest 86 157

Total 86 157

2.3 Sale of capital assets

2006/07 2005/06

Other capital assets - 1

Total - 1

2.4 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Nature of recovery

Stale cheques written back 4 2

Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue 390 664

Total 394 666

2.5 Transfers received

Public corporations and private enterprises 483 10

Total 483 10

3. Local and foreign aid assistance

3.1 Assistance received in cash from RDP

Foreign

Opening Balance -

Revenue 7,854 -

Expenditure 228 -

Current 228 -

Closing Balance 7,626 -

Total assistance

Opening Balance - -

Revenue 7,854 -

Expenditure 228 -

Current 228 -

Closing Balance 7,626 -

Analysis of balance

Local and foreign aid unutilised 7,626 -

Closing balance 7,626 -

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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4. Compensation of employees

4.1 Salaries and Wages

2006/07 2005/06

Basic salary 39,186 33,059

Performance award 477 575

Service Based 96 126

Compensative/circumstantial 674 1,182

Other non-pensionable allowances 8,589 7,021

Total 49,022 41,963

4.2 Social contributions

4.2.1 Employer contributions

Pension 5,138 4,324

Medical 2,473 2,396

Bargaining council 9 8

Insurance - 1

Total 7,620 6,729

Total compensation of employees 56,642 48,692

Average number of employees 278 279

5. Goods and services

Advertising 1,798 2,096

Attendance fees (including registration fees) 27 878

Bank charges and card fees 31 41

Bursaries (employees) 113 1,051

Catering 2,998 -

Communication 3,006 2,493

Computer services 737 305

Consultants, contractors and special services 1,852 649

Courier and delivery services 33 26

Drivers' licences and permits 2 6

Entertainment - 1,661

External audit fees 5.1 1,178 1,947

Equipment less than R5000 943 1,047

Inventory 5.2 1,341 1,066

Legal fees 230 734

Maintenance, repairs and running costs 112 156

Leases 3,874 2,877

Plant flowers and other decorations 141 48

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Department of the Premier - Annual Report
104



2006/07 2005/06

Printing and publications 1,938 890

Professional bodies and membership fees 2 10

Resettlement costs 175 133

Subscriptions 12 48

Owned leasehold property expenditure 3 58

Translations and transcriptions 6 14

Travel and subsistence 5.3 7,342 5,836

Venues and facilities 1,764 226

Protective, special clothing & uniforms 7 24

Training & staff development (293) 101

Total 29,372 24,421

5.1 External audit fees

Regulatory audits 1,178 1,947

Total 1,178 1,947

5.2 Inventory

Domestic consumables 26 -

Food and food supplies 44 56

Fuel and oil - 3

Other consumables 1 1

Stationery and printing 1,270 1,006

Total 1,341 1,066

5.3 Travel and subsistence

Local 4,347 4,196

Foreign 2,995 1,640

Total 7,342 5,836

6. Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Material losses through criminal conduct 323 -

- Theft 6.4 29 -

- Other material losses 6.1 294 -

Other material losses written off 6.2 5 783

Debts written off 6.3 188 918

Total 516 1,701

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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6.1 Other material losses

2006/07 2005/06

Other material losses

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/

Criminal proceedings

Fraudulent cashed cheques 294 -

Total 294 -

6.2 Other material losses written off

Nature of losses

Irrecoverable interdepartmental claim - 783

Write-off of damaged cellphones 5 -

Total 5 783

6.3 Debts written off

Nature of debts written off

Transfer to debts written off

Irrecoverable debts written off 188 918

Total 188 918

6.4 Detail of theft

Detail of theft

Cellphones and computer theft 29 -

Total 29 -

6.5 Irrecoverable amounts written off

(Total not included above)

Receivables written off 64 546

Irrecoverable bursary debt 64 546

Total 64 546

All debts written off in terms of the debtors management procedure and write-off policy

7. Transfers and subsidies

Note

Provinces and municipalities Annexure 1A, 47 175

Departmental agencies and accounts Annexure 1B 9,252 9,531

Households Annexure 1C 567 141

Total 9,866 9,847

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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8. Expenditure for capital assets

Machinery and equipment 28 688 1,295

Software and other intangible assets - 143

Computer software 29 - 143

Total 688 1,438

9. Unauthorised expenditure

9.1 Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure

Opening balance -

Unauthorised expenditure - current year 2,613 -

Unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation 2,613 -

9.2 Analysis of Current Unauthorised expenditure

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings 2006/07

Exceeding the budget       No 2,613

Total 2,613

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 5,122 200

Disbursements - 9

Cash on hand 14 14

Total 5,136 223

11. Prepayments and advances

Travel and subsistence 22 131

Total 22 131

12. Receivables

2006/07 2005/06

Note Less One to Older Total Total

than one three than three

year years years

Staff debtors 12.1 377 116 159 652 961

Other debtors 12.2 - 606 606 827

Intergovernmental

receivables Annexure 3 209 - - 209 282

Total 586 116 765 1,467 2,070

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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12.1 Staff debtors

Debtors debt 652 961

Total 652 961

12.2 Other debtors

Fraudulent cashed cheques 690 984

Recoverable revenue: Interest account (84) (157)

Total 606 827

13. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Opening balance 1,100 4,796

Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 385 1,100

Paid during the year (1,100) (4,796)

Closing balance 385 1,100

14. Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Opening balance 807 153

Departmental revenue budgeted 2 2,098 2,094

Paid during the year (2,036) (1,440)

Closing balance 869 807

15. Payables - current

2006/07 2005/06

Description

Notes 30 Days 30+ Days 2006/07 2005/06

Total Total

Clearing accounts 15.1 17 - 17 7

Total 17 - 17 7

15.1 Clearing accounts

Income tax 8 7

Pension fund 9 -

Total 17 7

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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16. Net cash flow available from operating activities

Net surplus as per Statement of Financial

Performance 8,011 1,100

Add back non cash/cash movements not

deemed operating activities (2,241) 1,783

Decrease in receivables - current 603 4,634

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances 109 (22)

Increase in other current assets (2,613) -

Increase/(decrease) in payables - current 10 (124)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets - (1)

Expenditure on capital assets 688 1,438

Surrenders to Revenue Fund (3,136) (6,236)

Other non-cash items 2,098 2,094

Net cash flow available from operating

activities 5,770 2,883

17. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

for cash flow purposes

Consolidated Paymaster General account 5,122 200

Disbursements - 9

Cash on hand 14 14

Total 5,136 223

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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These amounts are not recognised in the Annual Financial Statements and are

disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the Annual Financial Statements.

18. Contingent liabilities

Note 2006/07 2005/06

Liable to Nature

Motor vehicle guarantees: Employees Annexure 2A 227 452

Housing loan guarantees: Employees Annexure 2A 98 880

Claims against the Department Annexure 2B 2,647 -

Other departments (interdepartmental

unconfirmed balances) Annexure 4- 18

Total 2,972 1,350

19. Commitments

2006/07 2005/06

Current expenditure

Approved and contracted 433 78

Approved but not yet contracted - 3

433 81

Capital expenditure

Approved and contracted 6 146

Approved but not yet contracted 6 146

Total Commitments 439 227

20. Accruals

Listed by economic classification

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services 727 440 1,167 809

Total 727 440 1,167 809

Listed by programme level

Administration 158 138

Corporate Support 670 655

Policy and Governance 339 16

1,167 809

Confirmed balances with other

departments Annexure 4 162 13

162 13

The comparative figures have been restated to include the accruals that were not included.

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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21. Employee benefits

2006/07 2005/06

Leave entitlement 850 958

Thirteenth cheque 1,595 1,364

Capped leave commitments 3,765 3,808

Total 6,210 6,130

22. Lease commitments

22.1 Operating leases

Land Buildings

and other Machinery

fixed and

structures equipment Total

2006/2007

Not later than 1 year - - 778 778

Later than 1 year and not

later than 5 years - - 306 306

Total present value of lease 

liabilities - - 1 084 1084

Land Buildings

and other Machinery

fixed and

structures equipment Total

2005/2006

Not later than 1 year - - 2,971 2,971

Later than 1 year and not later

than 5 years - - 2,151 2,151

Total present value of lease

liabilities - - 5,122 5,122

22.2 Finance leases

Land Buildings

and other Machinery

fixed and

structures equipment Total

2006/2007

Not later than 1 year 28 28

Later than 1 year and not later

than 5 years 5 5

Later than five years

Total present value of lease

liabilities 33 33

Analysis

Condoned 33 33

Not condoned

Total 33 33

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Land Buildings

and other Machinery

fixed and

structures equipment Total

2005/2006

Not later than 1 year 95 95

Later than 1 year and not later

than 5 years 22 22

Total present value of lease

liabilities 117 117

Analysis

Condoned 117 117

Total 117 117

23. Receivables for departmental revenue

2006/07 2005/06

Sales of goods and services other

than capital assets 15 11

Total 15 11

24. Irregular expenditure

24.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Opening balance 45 -

Add: Irregular expenditure -

current year 476 45

Less: Amounts condoned 104 -

Current expenditure 104 -

Irregular expenditure awaiting

condonement 417 45

Current expenditure 417 45

The comparative figure has been restated to include the irregular expenditure of the

previous financial year.

24.1.1 Analysis of awaiting condonement per classification

Current expenditure 417 45

Total 417 45

24.1.2 Analysis of awaiting condonement per age classification

Current year 372 45

Prior year 45 -

Total 417 45

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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24.2 Irregular expenditure

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/

criminal proceedings

Overtime paid in No - 45

contravention of paragraph

D.2(b) of Part V of the

Public Service Regulations,

2001.

Finance leases in terms of No - condoned by the 104 -

Government contract RT 3 National Treasury

of 2003.

Expenditure occurred prior No 372

to approval granted

476 45

25. Related party transactions

A transfer payment to the amount of R9,252 million was made to the Free State

Youth Commission during the reporting period in terms of the Free State Youth

Commission Act, 1996 (Act No. 4 of 1996).

26. Key management personnel

No. of 2006/07 2005/06

Individuals

Political office bearers (provide detail below) 1 1,030 930

Officials

Level 15 to 16 4 3,309 3,426

Level 14 (including CFO if at a lower level) 7 3,256 1,772

Total 7,595 6,128

27. Provisions

Potential irrecoverable debts

Other debtors 690 1,658

Total 690 1,658

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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28. Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

Opening Current Additions Disposals Closing

balance Year balance

adjustments

to prior

year

balances

Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 5,913 (1,000) 688 5,601

Computer equipment 3,526 (785) 328 3,069

Furniture and office equipment 1,937 (100) 360 2,197

Other machinery and equipment 450 (115) - 335

TOTAL TANGIBLE ASSETS 5,913 (1,000) 688 5,601

The closing balance for computer equipment has been restated to include the

disposals during the previous financial year.

28.1 ADDITIONS TO TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

Cash Non- (Capital Received Total

cash work in current,

progress not paid

current (Paid

costs) current

year,

received

prior

year)

Cost Fair Value Cost Cost Cost

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 688 - - - 688

Computer equipment 328 - - - 328

Furniture and office equipment 360 - -- - 360

TOTAL 688 - - - 688

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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28.2 MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2006

Opening Additions Disposals Closing

balance balance

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 4,468 1,446 1 5,913

Computer equipment 2,263 1,264 1 3,526

Furniture and office equipment 1,796 141 - 1,937

Other machinery and equipment 409 41 - 450

TOTAL TANGIBLE ASSETS 4,468 1,446 1 5,913

The closing balance for computer equipment has been restated to include the

disposals during the previous financial year.

29. Intangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2007

Opening balanceCurrent year adjust-ments to prior year balancesAdditions

Disposals Closing balance

Cost Cost Cost Cost Cost

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 332 (332) - - -

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS 332 (332) - - -

29.1 MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR

THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2006

Opening Additions Disposals Closing

balance balance

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 189 143 - 332

TOTAL 189 143 - 332

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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ANNEXURE 3 
INTER-GOVERNMENT RECEIVABLES

Confirmed balance
outstanding 

Unconfirmed balance
outstanding Total

31/03/2007 31/03/2006 31/03/2007 31/03/2006 31/03/2007 31/03/2006 
Government entity 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Department

Environmental Affairs
and Tourism

- 45 - - - 45 

Health 18 35 - - 18 35 

Local Government and 
Housing 

60 17 - - 60 17 

Safety and Security  57 1   -  53 57 54 

Social Development  - 1   - - - 1 

Sport, Arts and Culture  - 34   -  - - 34 

SA Social Security
Agency

1 - - - 1 - 

 136  133   -  53   136 186

Other Government
entities 
South African Police 
Service

-  -  28 1 28  1

SITA 13 - - 23 13 23 

Justice and 
Constitutional
Development

- - - 11 - 11 

Correctional Services - - - 4 - 4 

Free State Provincial
Legislature 

 1  -  - 35 1 35 

National Parliament  -  -  - 19 - 19

Department of Trade
and Industry

 -  -  - 3 -   3

Mpumalanga Local
Government

- - 18 - 18 - 

Department of Health
(National)

- - 9 - 9 - 

Thabo Mafutsanyane
District Municipality

1 - - - 1 - 

Department of Water 
Affairs

2 - - - 2 - 

Department of Foreign 
Affairs

1 - - - 1 - 

18   -  55  96 73 96

TOTAL  154  133  55  149  209 282

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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ANNEXURE 4 
INTER-GOVERNMENT PAYABLES

Confirmed balance
outstanding 

Unconfirmed balance
outstanding TOTAL 

31/03/2007 31/03/2006 31/03/2007 31/03/2006 31/03/2007 31/03/2006 

GOVERNMENT
ENTITY

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

DEPARTMENTS

Current

Justice and 
Constitutional
Development 

-  6 -  -   -  6 

South African 
Police Service

 - 7 -  18   -  25

Government
Garage 

97 - - - 97 - 

Department of
Social
Development

65  65 

Total  162 13   -  18  162  31

FREE STATE DEPARTMENT OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2007
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Glossary

APP

ASGISA

BAS

BPI

CCPFSP

CDW

CGFSP

CUT 

DBSA

DD 

DDG 

DG 

DLG&H

DME

DOL

DPSA

DWAF

EAP

EE Plan

EPMDS

Annual Performance Plan 

Accelerated Shared Growth Initiative of South 
Africa

Basic Accounting System 

Business Process Improvement 

Co-ordinating Chamber of the Public Co-ordinating 
Bargaining Council for the Free State Province

Community Development Worker

Chamber of the General Public Service Sectoral 
Bargaining Council 

Central University of Technology 

Development Bank of Southern Africa 

Deputy Director

Deputy Director General 

Director General

Department of Local Government and Housing 

Department of Minerals and Energy 

Department of Labour

Department of Public Service and Administration 

Department of Water Affairs and Forestry

Employee Assistance Programme

Employment Equity Plan 

Employee Performance Management and
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EPWP

EXCO

FOHOD 

FRESPAG 

FS 

FSGDS

FSPG

FSTDI 

G&A 

GCIS

GDS

GEMS

GEPF 

GITOC 

HOD 

HR

HRMDS

ICT

IDCF

IDLRF 

IDP

Development System

Extended Public Works Programme

Executive Council (of the Free State Provincial
Government)

Forum of Heads of Department 

Free State Society for Public Administration and
Governance

Free State 

Free State Growth and Development Strategy 

Free State Provincial Government

Free State Training and Development Institute 

Governance and Administration 

Government Communication and Information 
System

Growth and Development Strategy 

Government Employees Medical System 

Government Employees Pension Fund 

Government Information Technology Officers’
Council 

Head of Department 

Human Resource 

Human Resource and Management Development
Strategy 

Information Communication Technology 

Interdepartmental Communication Forum 

Interdepartmental Labour Relations Forum

Integrated Development Plan 
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IGR

INDS

ISRDP

IT

JCPS 

JE

JIPSA

LED

LGSETA

LISSCS

LR

MANCO

M&E System

MDP

MEC 

MIG

MISS

MPCC 

NCOP

NGO/CBO

NIA 

NQF

NSDF

OHS

Intergovernmental Relations

Integrated National Disability Strategy 

Integrated Sustainable Rural Development 
Programme

Information Technology 

Justice, Crime Prevention and Security 

Job Evaluation 

Joint Initiative for Priority Skills Acquisition 

Local Economic Development 

Local Government Service Education Training 
Authority 

Local Inter-sectoral  Steering Committees

Labour Relations

Management Committee

Monitoring and Evaluation System 

Management Development Programme

Member of the Executive Council 

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 

Minimum Information Security Standards

Multi-purpose Community Centre

National Council of Provinces

Non Governmental Organisation 

National Intelligence Association 

National Quality Framework 

National Spatial Development Perspective

Occupational Health and Safety 
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ORC

OSW 

PCC

PCF 

PDM

PDMS

PEAC

PFMA

PGDS

PILIR

PISSC

PMG

POA 

PPPFA

PROPAC 

PSCC 

PSDF

PSETA

PSR

SABC

SALGA 

SAMDI 

SASSA

SCM

Office on the Rights of the Child 

Office on the Status of Women 

President’s Coordinating Council 

Premier’s Coordinating Forum 

Performance and Development Management

Performance and Development System

Premier’s Economic and Advisory Council 

Public Finance and Management Act 

Provincial Growth and Development Strategy 

Policy and Procedure on Incapacity Leave and Ill
health Retirement 

Provincial Inter-Sectoral Steering Committee 

Paymaster General 

Programme of Action 

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act

Public Accounts Committee 

Provincial Security Coordinating Committee 

Provincial Spatial Development Framework 

Public Service Education Training Authority

Public Service Regulations

South African Broadcasting Corporation 

South African Local Government Association 

South African Management Development Institute

South African Social Security Agency 

Supply Chain Management 
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SDLC

SITA

SMME

SMS 

TPCC 

URP

WC

WSP

ZCC 

System Development Life Cycle 

State Information Technology Agency 

Small-, Medium- and Micro Enterprise

Senior Management Service

Technical President’s Coordinating Council

Urban Renewal Programme

Ward Councillor

Workplace Skills Plan 

Zion Christian Church 
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